From: Cornell-Brown, Rowan

Sent: Wednesday, March 08, 2017 11:00 AM

To: 'tracys@gannett.com' <tracys@gannett.com>

Subject: RE: Freedom of Information Request - Vermont Origin Rule

Dear Ms. Schuhmacher,

We have identified two responsive actions taken by our office in the timeframe you have provided, detailed below:

Date Docket No. Case

January 9, 2014 658-9-12 Wncv State of Vermont v. Vermints, Inc., and
Gary J. Rinkus

October 14, 2016 625-10-16 Wncv In Re Gregory Finch

The settlement document for each case has been attached.
Best Regards,

Rowan Cornell-Brown

Program Technician

Consumer Protection & Antitrust Units
Office of the Vermont Attorney General
109 State Street

Montpelier, Vermont 05609
802-828-5507



STATE OF VERMONT

SUPERIOR COURT
WASHINGTON UNIT Wy JAN -9 P |5
STATE OF YERMONT, ) N
Plaintiff ) F ; S
\ -
' ) CIVIL DIVISION
) Docket No. 658-9-12 Wnev
VERMINTS, INC., and )
GARY J. RINKUS, )
Defendants )

STIPULATION AND CONSENT ORDER

WHEREAS, as evidenced by their signatures below, Plaintiff State of Vermont (“the
State”), through its Attorney General, and Defendants VerMints, Inc., and Gary Rinkus
(“Defendants’™) have agreed 1o the entry of this Stipulation and Consent Order;

WHEREAS the parties have waived any requirement that the Court make findings of
fact or conclusioné of law;

WHEREAS all parties have consulted with legal counsel in connection with this
Stipulation and Consent Order;

WHEREAS all parties agree that the terms of this Stipulation and Consent Order are
just; and

WHEREAS the Court approves the terms of the parties’ agreement and adopts them
as its own determination of their respective rights and obligations;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED as follows:




Injunctive relief
1. Defendants shall comply strictly with the Vermont Attorney General's
Consumer  Protection Rule (CP) 120, currently accessible online at

http://www.atg.state.vt.us/assets/files/CP%20120.pdf.

2. Effective January 15, 2014, Defendants shall not sell in or into any states in the
northeast United States any of their products that are produced outside of Vermont, unless
there appears on the front panel of the product packaging a sticker or graphic in the same
form, size, and prominence as the “Produced in Canada” disclosure shown in Exhibit 1
hereto.

3. For the purpose of paragraph 2, above:

a. “States in the northeast United States” means (i) the states of Vermont, New
Hampshire, Maine, Massachusetts, Rhode Island, Connecticut, and New Jersey, and (ii) the
states of New York and Pennsylvania, excepr for those parts of western New York and
western Pennsylvania serviced by VerMints” UNFI distributor in York, Pennsylvania.

b. “Product packaging” means, in the case of mints sold in metal tins, the metal
tin itself.

4. As long as the disclosure obligation set out in paragraph 2 is fully complied
with, that obligation shall expire on July 15, 2015. If the disclosure obligation is not fully
complied with, then that obligation shall continue in force until either the parties jointly
submit to the Court an amendment to this Stipulation and Consent Order or the Court orders

a new expiration date, whichever occurs first.




Monetary relief

5. Cy pres. No later than January 15, 2014, Defendants shall pay the sum of
$35,000.00 (thirty-five thousand dollars) to the Vermont Food Bank for the purpose of
addressing the food needs of Vermonters. Within 5 (five) days of making this payment,
Defendants shall send to the Vermont Attorney General's Office, c/o Assistant Attorney
General Elliot Burg, 109 State Street, Montpelier, Vermont 05609, documentation of said
payment to the Vermont Food Bank.

6. Payment to the State. No later than January 15, 2014, Defendants shall pay the
sum of $30,000.00 (thirty thousand dollars) to the State of Vermont, by sending said
payment to the Vermont Attorney General's Office, c/o Assistant Attorney General Elliot
Burg, 109 State Street, Montpelier, Vermont 05609.

7. Joint and several liability. Defendants VerMints, Inc., and Gary Rinkus shall be
jointly and severally liable for the payments described in paragraphs 5 and 6, above.

Other Provisions

8. Final resolution. This Stipulation and Consent Order resolves all existing
claims the State of Vermont may have against Defendants stemming from the facts and
claims described in the Consumer Protection Complaint in this matter.

9. Binding effect. This Stipulation and Consent Order shall be binding on
Defendants and their respective successors and assigns.

10. Continuing jurisdiction. This Court retains continuing jurisdiction for the
purpose of enabling any of the parties to this Stipulation and Consent Order to apply to the

Court for such further orders or relief as may be necessary or appropriate for the

/

/



modification of any of the provisions hereof, for the enforcement of compliance herewith,
and for the punishment of violations herewith.

11. Execution in counterparts. This Stipulation and Consent Order may be
executed in counterparts, and a facsimile or .pdf signature shall be deemed to be, and shall

have the same force and effect, as an original signature,

Dated this _‘]’ ) dayof,/lgﬂmgg( , 2014,
Ly .

Superior Judge
Helen M. Toor

STIPULATION

The undersigned parties stipulate and agree to the foregoing Consent Order.

Dated at D QCCWY/ ,this_} Z day of December, 2013.

%M/ /% //(’(WMT

Authgrized Agefit of VerMints, Inc.

Dated at O{Q CC./T\ A’ / , this 25 day of December, 2013.
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STEPHEN SESIN
Nols.y Public, Commowea!sh of Masaachisota
My Commizsion Exnires May 7, 2015




LAY, Loty 4
Dated at Montpelier. Vermont this __J ~ day of Deeember;2643.
STATE OF VERMONT

WILLIAM H. SORRELL
ATTORNEY GENERAL

By: %

Elliot Burf
Assistant Attorney General

oy 7

7

John F. Camppell, Es.
1996 Main S{reet
P.O. Box 122

Quechee, Vermont 05059
S For Defendants

(L
Elliot Burd
Assistant Attorney General
Office of the Attorney General
109 State Street
Montpelier, Vermont 05609
For the State of Vermont
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STATE OF VERMONT
SUPERIOR COURT

)  CIVIL DIVISION
INRE:  Gregory Finch ) Docket No. T ‘
) L)S—10-1Gwaey

- ASSURANCE OF DISCONTINUANCE

Vermont Attorney General William H. Sorrell (“the Attorney General”) and Gregory
Finch (“Respondent™) hereby agfee to this Assurance of Discontinuance (“AOD”) pursuant
to 9 V.S.A. § 2459.
REGULATORY FRAMEWORK
1. Vermont’s Consumer Protection Act prohibits “unfair methods of competition in
commerce, and unfair or deceptive acts or practices in commerce.” 9 V.S.A. § 2453.

BACKGROUND

2. Gregory Finch is an individual residing at ASullivan, New Hampshire.
3. Vermont’s Family Farm is a terminated Limited Liability Company with its previous

place of business located at 15 Towle Neighborhood Rd., Enosburg Falls, VT 05450;

4., Gregory Finch operated his pig production operation through Vermont’s Family Farm,
and Gregory Finch was the sole member and manager of Vermont’s Family Farm.

5. Respondent began producing pigs in'2009, purchasing approximately 100 pigs from
within and outside of Vermont.

6. In 2009, Respondent circulated a protocol dated December 2, 2009 (the “Initial
Protocol”), which stated that “[t]he pigs are born, grown and processed exclusively in the

State of Vermont.”



7. Respondent never stopped using pigs purchased out of state to supplement his
Vermont-born stock. These “feeder” pigs were purchased, primarily, from New Holland,
Pennsylvania, and were taken to the Enosburg Falls farm site. |

8. Respondent never signed the protocol, but Respondent never amended the protocol
to reflect his actual practices.

9. Although Respondent processed all of his pigs in Vermont, his pigs were never
exclusively born or grown in the state of Vermont.

10.  InJanuary of 2014, Respondent signed a Black River Protocol, which required that
his pigs be raised the lesser of 90 days or half their life in Vermont.

11.  The pigs Respondent purchased from New Holland Stables were not in Vermont for
half of their life.

12.  The Attorney General alléges that, based on the records of purchases from New
Holland Stables, located in New Holland, Pennsylvania, and the pigs remaining at
Vermont’s Family Farm on February 13, 2015, when the Vermont State Veterinarian placed
a quarantine order restricting the movement of livestock, Respondent could not have been
maintaining the pigs in Vermont for a minimum of 90 days.

13.  Both the Initial Protocol and the Black River Protocol additionally stated that
Respondent’s pigs were raised antibiotic-free throughout their lifetimes.

14. While Respondent did not use antibiotics on any pigs in his care or custody that went
to Black River, he is unable to substantiate the claims that the pigs were raised antibiotic-
free and did not obtain records from New Holland Stables that addressed the use of

antibiotics.



15.  The representations made by Respondent regarding the origin of the pigs and
circumstances of production were relied upon by Vermont Packing House for the labeling of
slaughtered pigs, Black River Meats in packaging and distributing the pork, and Vermont
Smoke and Cure in labeling and marketing its consumer products.
16. Consumers paid a premium price for products made from Respondent’s pigs.
17. Except where otherwise indicated, Respondent admits the truth of all facts set forth
in the Background section. |
18.  The Attorney General alleges that the above conduct constitutes unfair and deceptive
acts and practices under 9 V.S.A. § 2453.

INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
19.  Respondent must comply fully with 9 V.S.A. § 2454 and must cease making any
unsubstantiated representations regarding any characteristic of his products, including
without limitation the origin, use of antibiotics, other production practices, and treatment of
livestock.

PENALTIES

20.  Respondent shall pay civil penalties of $143,875 to the State of Vermont.
21.  Based on Respondent’s demonstrated inability to pay the penalty listed in paragraph
21, and upon review of the financial information Respondent provided to the Office of the
Attorney General, Respondent is required to pay only $5,000 of the penalty, which shall be
paid within ten days of both Parties signing this AOD. Respondent shall make payment to
the “State of Vermont™ and send payment to: Wendy Morgan, Assistant Attorney General,

Office of the Attorney General, 109 State Street, Montpelier, Vermont 05609.



22.  No later than May 1 of each calendar year beginning in 2017 and ending in 2021,
Respondent shall submit to the Vermont Attorney General’s Office accuraté copies of his
income tax returns for each of the calendar years 2016 through 2020, respectively, along
with sworn and accurate statements of his then-current assets and liabilities. After 2021,
Respondent shall no longer be required to submit any further tax returns and liability for any
outstanding civil penalty under this Assurance of Discontinuance shall expire.

23.  Inthe event that an income tax return or statement of assets and liabilities required
by paragraph 23, above, shows that Respondent has pre-tax income exceeding $50,000.00,
and/or net assets exceeding $80,000.00, Respondent shall, no later than June 1 of that year,
pay to the State of Vermont, in care of the VAttomey General’s Office, an amount equal to 20
percent of any pre-tax income exceeding $50,000.00, plus an amount equal to 20 percent of
any net assets exceeding $80,000.00, provided that once Respondent has paid a total of
$138,269 pursuant to this paragraph, he shall have no further liability under this paragraph
or further obligation to report under paragraph 23.

24. Respondent will not have any obligation to pay amounts due pursuant to paragraph 24
from payments of benefits subject to statutory exemptions including, but not limited to
Veteran’s Benefits (38 U.S.C. § 5301); Social Security or Supplemental Security Income (42
U.S.C. §§407 and 1383); Unemployment Compensation Benefits (21 V.S.A. § 1367);
Workers” Compensation Benefits (21 V.S.A. § 687); or Welfare or Public Assistance
Benefits (33 V.S.A. § 124).

25.  Respondent does not waive and shall be entitled to claim all exemptions under New

Hampshire and Vermont law.



OTHER TERMS
26.  Respondent agrees that this Assurance of Discontinuance shall be binding on
Vermont’s Family Farm, Gregory Finch, and their successors and assigns.
27.  As Gregory Finch was the sole member and manager of Vermont’s Family Farm,
this Assurance of Discontinuance does not extend or apply to any spouse or family member
of Grégory Finch, except to the extent that said spouse or family member becomes a
' SuCCessor or assign.
28.  The Attorney General hereby releases and discharges any and all claims arising
under the Consumer Protection Act, 9 V.S.A. §§ 2451-2480, that it may have against
Vermont’s Family Farm and Gregory Finch for the conduct described in the Background
section between the dates of January 1, 2009, through March 1, 2015.
29.  The Superior Court of the State of Vermont, Washington Unit, shall have jurisdiction
over this Assurance and the parties hereto for the purpose of enabling the Attorney General
to apply to this Court at any time for orders and directions as may be necessary or
appropriate to enforce compliance with or to punish violations of this Assurance of
Discontinuance.
NOTICE
30.  Respondent may be located at:
~ Sullivan, New Hampshire.
31. | Respondent shall notify the Attorney General of any change of address within 20

business days.



32.  Inthe event that Respondent obtains any ownership or managerial interest in any
business that engages in food production, Respondent shall notify the Attorney General of

the name and address of the business.



STIPULATED PENALTIES
33.  Ifthe Superior Court of the State of Vermont, Washington Unit enters an order
finding Respondent to be in violation of this Assurance of Discontinuance, then the parties
agree that penalties to be assessed by the Court for each act in violation of this Assurance of
Discontinuance shall be $10,000.
SIGNATURE

In lieu of instituting an action or proceeding against Respondent, the Office of the
Attorney General, pursuant to 9 V.S.A. § 2459, accepts this Assurance of Discontinuance. By
signing below, Respondent voluntarily agrees with and submits to the terms of this Assurance

of Discontinuance.

DATED at SU\\\\\}A/\ /\/ pf tlnsB’s\—dayof A(,\AL/\>\~ 2016.

/AﬁMxﬂ

Gregory Finch

ACCEPTED on behalf of the Attorney General

DATED at Montpelier, Vermont thls% day of% l2¢%016.

STATE OF VERMONT

WILLIAM H. SORRELL
ATTORNEY GENERAL
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